

BYE LAWS

OF

ST. JOHN'S LODGE,

LEICESTER.

Copyright Worcestershire Masonic  
Library and Museum Trust

1851.

Printed by G. Chapman Brown,  
The N. Crown, Market Place.

Exeter:

June 4th, 1851.

Confirmed in Open Lodge,

Exeter.

No. 228.

Free & Accepted  
Masons,

of

St. John's Lodge,

of

The Arms

The

THE  
Bye Laws  
OF  
St. John's Lodge,

No. 348.

—→  
INTRODUCTION.

WITHOUT due order and decorum, harmony cannot be preserved, nor the business of Masonry properly conducted; therefore at the stroke of the Master's hammer profound silence shall be observed.

I.

If a Brother say any thing improper in the Lodge, hold private conversations, dispute about religion or politics, interrupt another while speaking, or remain seated while addressing the Master, enter the Lodge unclothed, or otherwise conduct himself indecorously, he shall be subject to such

censure or fine, as the majority of the members then present shall think proper; and if he refuse to submit thereto, after having been thrice admonished by the Master, he shall be liable to exclusion, (subject to an appeal to the Grand Lodge.) No Brother shall be allowed to speak more than once on any subject that may be under discussion, except by way of explanation, or when called on by the Master, or in reply.

## II.

### *Day and Time of Meeting.*

The Lodge shall be held on the First Wednesday in every Calendar Month, from the Vernal Equinox to the Autumnal, at the hour of Seven in the evening; and from the Autumnal to the Vernal, at the hour of Six; which hours shall be stated in the regular summonses, and the Lodge shall be closed from the hour of Nine to Ten, and not later.

## III.

### *Officers.*

The Officers of this Lodge shall consist of a Master, a Deputy Master if necessary, Senior

Warden, Junior Warden, Two Deacons, a Steward, Secretary, Chaplain, Inner Guard, and Tyler.

#### IV.

##### *Election of Master and other Officers.*

The Master shall be elected by ballot at the Meeting in December, and at the next regular Meeting (or sooner if a Festival be kept) he shall be regularly, and in ancient form, installed and invested, after which he shall appoint and invest all the other Officers of the Lodge, except the Treasurer.

#### V.

##### *Election of Treasurer and his Duty.*

The Treasurer shall be elected by ballot, and invested at the time the Master is installed; he shall receive the Cash of the Lodge, discharge bills when duly vouched and sanctioned by the Master; keep books in which his accounts of receipts and disbursements shall be regularly stated, so as to disclose at one view the amount of cash in his hands; which books shall be open for the



inspection of every subscribing member at each Meeting. The Steward, or one of the Deacons, shall (if necessary,) assist him in his duty; his accounts shall be yearly audited by the Committee provided for in Rule 10, previous to the regular Lodge in January, and the balance (if any) appearing to be due shall then be paid over by him to the Treasurer elect or otherwise as the Lodge shall direct.

## VI.

*The Secretary and his Duty.*

The Secretary shall issue summonses five days at least previous to each Meeting, particularly noticing Initiations, Propositions, or new members to be admitted, specifying their trade or profession, place of abode, and by whom proposed and seconded; bye Laws to be altered, repealed, or new ones made. He shall make minutes of all proceedings in the Lodge; make and answer all communications under the direction of the Master; and during the first week in March shall furnish (if called upon) a list of the Members to be registered with the Clerk of the Peace. This officer may, if he please, appoint a Deputy to assist him, such deputy being a Member of the Lodge.

## VII.

*The Steward and his Duty.*

The Steward shall take care that the Tylers keep the furniture and regalia in good order; that Members and Visitors are introduced in due form, properly situated in the Lodge, and at the Banquet; accompany Visitors and instruct them in the peculiar customs of the Lodge, that they may regulate their conduct accordingly. At Initiations he shall discharge such parts of that duty as may be allotted to him, assist in the examination of Visitors, and take care that the Tylers provide every thing requisite in the Lodge; he shall attend at the left hand of the Senior Warden, and at Refreshment shall see that the tables are properly supplied.

## VIII.

*Inner Guard.*

The Inner-Guard must be a Brother skilled in Masonry, punctual in his attendance, and circumspect in the discharge of his duties.

## IX.

*Qualification for Officers.*

No Member shall be qualified for any office, or be permitted to vote on any occasion, while his subscription is in arrear.

## X.

*Permanent Committee.*

A Permanent Committee consisting of the Officers of the Lodge for the time being, and the Past-Masters shall superintend the finances and property of the Lodge, and consider any subject relating to its interests; they shall meet when summoned by the Master, five to be a quorum, and the result of their proceedings shall be forthwith communicated to the Master, who shall report the same to the Lodge at its next regular Meeting; the expense of such Meetings to be paid out of the General Fund.

## XI.

*Operation of Ballot.*

Whenever a ballot takes place for the initiation of a Candidate into Masonry or the admission of a



Member, if two negatives appear the Candidate shall not be considered elected; but on motion being made, a second ballot may take place at the same Meeting, but if again two negatives appear, the Candidate shall be precluded for six months, but if three negatives appear on any ballot, the proposition shall be considered as rejected, and the same motion shall not be again made until the expiration of Twelve Months.

## XII.

*Motions to be made in Writing.*

No Motion of any kind shall be regarded unless duly seconded and forwarded in Writing to the Master with the names of the mover and seconder.

## XIII.

*Initiation of Candidates and Admission of Members.*

When any gentleman is proposed to be admitted a Member, or to be made a Mason in this Lodge, a deposit of One Guinea shall be made, and he shall then be balloted for at the next regular

Lodge, (unless in case of emergency as provided for in clause 15,) and if approved, and not a Mason, he shall if present, be initiated; the fee for which shall be Four Guineas, including the Tyler's fees, registry at Grand Lodge, and Grand Lodge Certificate. The joining fee, if initiated in this or any other Lodge, under the Registry of the Grand Lodge of England, shall be £1. 1s. 0d. but if initiated in a Lodge not under the Registry of the Grand Lodge of England, £1. 11s. 6d. If a Candidate, approved by ballot, do not attend within Three Months, the deposit shall be forfeited, unless a sufficient apology be made and accepted; and if a rejection should be the result of the ballot, the previous deposit shall be returned to the Member who made the proposition.

#### XIV.

##### *Cases of Emergency.*

The Master when he shall deem necessary may summon a Meeting of the brethren, stating in the summons the particular business on which the Lodge is so summoned.

## XV.

*Lodges of Emergency.*

Any gentleman desirous of being made a Mason, passed, or raised, previous to a regular Meeting must give notice to the Secretary, and the expenses attending the Lodge of Emergency shall be paid by the Candidate if required so to do by the Master.

## XVI.

*Propositions to be made in Writing, and inserted in the Summons.*

All propositions for admission or initiation shall be made in writing and delivered to the Master, expressing the christian and surname, trade, profession, and place of abode of the Candidate; the names of the brethren by whom proposed and seconded, that those particulars may be correctly entered on the minutes, and inserted in the next summons.

## XVII.

*Member erasing his name.*

Any Member who shall, in open Lodge, desire his name to be erased from the books, shall not

again be admitted as a Member without being balloted for, and paying £1. 11s. 6d. exclusive of a due proportion of the Subscription for the current year: this however shall not extend to any Member desirous of being discontinued, who on stating his intention by letter to the Secretary, previous to the Lodge in January, and discharging all arrears, may be discontinued accordingly; and he at any time afterwards re-admitted on application for that purpose, paying One Guinea, independent of a due proportion of the subscription for the present year: provided in all cases that the Candidate is approved on ballot. But whoever shall not have given in his name, previous to the Lodge in January, (as above required) shall be considered as a subscribing member for the ensuing year.

## XVIII.

*Subscription.*

The Annual Subscription of each Member of the Lodge shall be One Guinea, exclusive of Two Shillings to the Grand Lodge; the same to be paid on the day of the Festival of St. John the Evangelist. Any Member being in arrear at the expiration of Twelve Months after the latter day of pay-

ment, shall be written to by the Secretary to remind him of his default ; when should no satisfactory answer be returned within a Month, the name of such Member shall be liable to erasure.

## XIX.

*Visitors.*

No Brother shall be admitted to visit the Lodge unless he has been duly examined and approved, or is satisfactorily vouched for by a Member of the Lodge, and introduced in due form by the proper officer ; but no resident Brother, not a Subscribing Member to a Lodge, shall be admitted to visit more than once in each year, at regular Meetings, except by special permission of the Master and his Wardens.

## XX.

*Furniture, &c. of the Lodge.*

The books, papers, and other property of every kind attached to the Lodge, shall be considered as vested in the Master and Wardens for the time being ; in trust, nevertheless, for themselves and the other Members of the Lodge. A regular inventory of the whole shall be entered in the minute



book, the same shall be examined by the Deacons and Steward at the Meetings in June and October, and by the Master previous to his installation.

## XXI.

*The Tylers' Fees and Duty*

The Tylers shall be allowed on the initiation of every Candidate *One Shilling and Sixpence*; and on the admission of every Member *One Shilling*; and for each regular Meeting of the Lodge *Four Shillings*; they shall take care of and keep in good order the furniture, &c., belonging to the Lodge; and shall see that every person, whether Member or Visitor, enters his name in a book (provided for that purpose) previous to his admission into the Lodge.

## XXII.

*Mode of Altering Bye Laws.*

No alteration shall be made in these Bye Laws, nor any new ones added, unless at a regular Meeting of the Lodge; if seconded, such alterations to be handed to the Master, and inserted in the proceedings; and the Master shall announce that it

will be discussed the following month, for which purpose it shall be then mentioned in the summonses.

## XXIII.

*Bye Laws and List of Members.*

A printed copy of the Bye Laws, list of Members, with the dates of their admission or initiation, offices, &c., shall be delivered by the Tyler to each Member, as soon as the same shall be printed, and to every Candidate on his initiation.

Approved and Confirmed in Open Lodge,  
June 4th. 1851.

JOSEPH UNDERWOOD, W. M.

JOHN BUCK, S. W.

THOMAS ANGRAVE, J. W.

WILLIAM WALES STEPHENS, SEC.

A List of  
The Members of St. John's Lodge,  
No. 348.

*From the time of its foundation, in 1790,  
to the present time.*

Note.—MARKED THUS \* ARE THE FOUNDERS.

† ADJOINING MEMBERS.

1791 †Atwell, Joseph Arnold, Edward 1801 Abbey, John 1814 Agat, Thomas 1819 Amick, — 1821 Alston, Samuel 1842 Andrade, Thomas 1846 Aldridge, J. F. 1796 *Bull, Thomas *Blower, John Beynon, Theophilus Brewin, Ellis Shipley 1791 Burley, William Bracebridge, George 1792 Bennett, Joseph Bellamy, William 1796 Bryan, Joseph	1799 †Brace, Thomas 1800 †Ball, J. Bird, Cornet, Richard Hunter, 12th Light Dragoon Guards Brown, Cornet Brotherton, Royal Horse Guards, Blue Butcher, John 1801 Bond, Robert 1802 †Bridges, John †Billson, John 1804 †Bryans, — 1805 †Barker, R. 1810 Bates, Thomas 1813 Barney, Timothy 1818 Burgess, Joshua 1821 Brown, Thomas
--	---

- 1821 +Burnaby, Rev. Thomas  
Burnaby, Beaumont
- 1822 Brydone, Charles  
Birdsall, William
- 1824 Bloomar, Charles
- 1830 +Bigsby, Rev. Charles  
+Bird, Captain Richard Hunter
- 1831 Boyer, Arthur
- 1832 Bradshaw, Francis Jones
- 1838 Browne, John Garle, jun.
- 1841 Briggs, Jeremiah  
Burdett, Charles
- 1842 Berridge, William  
Barber, Henry
- 1842 Barber, John
- 1843 Browne, T. Chapman
- 1846 Brem, Charles Adams
- 1847 Bate, John  
Buck, John  
Barber, Harby
- 1848 Bell, Joseph
- 1850 Brown, John
- 1790 Cradock, Joseph  
Clarke, Thomas
- 1791 Cooper, Captain Nathaniel
- 1792 Cornish, William
- 1796 Cape, John George
- 1799 Caparn, James  
Clay, Henry
- 1800 +Cooke, Thomas
- 1801 Cherry, Lieut. William, Royal Horse Guards, Blue.
- 1801 +Clarke, Thomas (Tyler)
- 1802 Clarke, Robert
- 1804 +Cook, Thomas
- 1808 Coleman, —
- 1813 Carver, John
- 1817 +Cradock, Thomas
- 1818 Crowder, Joseph  
Cooke, William
- 1820 +Cook, Alderman Thomas
- 1822 Cheslyn, John
- 1823 Chamberlayne, Wm.  
Cape, Thomas
- 1829 Chatterton, John
- 1833 Cummings, William (Tyler)
- 1841 +Crawford, Robert
- 1842 Coward, George Gale Snel-  
ling
- 1846 Chapman, Stephen
- 1847 +Cuff, E. C.
- 1790 \*Dean, Joseph  
Davey, Henry  
Daniel, Robert (Tyler)  
Davenport, Francis Brewin
- 1801 Draper, Thomas
- 1803 Duplex, Richard
- 1804 Dove, J.
- 1811 Dalton, John Hayward
- 1816 Davis, Halhed
- 1824 +Dennis, Stephen  
Dodd, John
- 1850 +Dolby, W. Ashton
- 1790 \*Elliott, James
- 1794 +Ellis, James (Tyler)
- 1797 Evans, Edward
- 1826 +Elverson, James
- 1843 Evans, J. R.
- 1846 Emberlin, H. E.
- 1790 Freer, Thomas, Attorney
- 1791 Fox, John



- 1797 Fletcher, William  
 Forster, Lieut. Aug. John,  
 Royal Horse Guards, Blue
- 1817 Fowke, Sir F. Gustavus, Bart
- 1823 Freer, Thomas, Surgeon  
 Flint, William
- 1824 Freake, Joseph Frederick
- 1828 Fewkes, Samuel
- 1831 +Ferrers, Right Hon. the  
 Earl
- 1840 Fry, Stephen
- 1846 +Fenwicke, G. C.
- 1790 \*Green, William
- 1792 Glover, Joseph
- 1796 +Gill, William
- 1802 Greasely, John  
 Gird, Henry
- 1803 +Gee, John
- 1814 Gregory, Thomas Vowe
- 1829 Gill, Charles
- 1830 Gill, Henry
- 1831 Grange, Auguste  
 +Gordon, Alexander
- 1846 Gibson, James
- 1770 \*Horton, Charles  
 \*Hill, John  
 Hodges, Edward
- 1791 Harris, David
- Hunt, Thomas
- 1793 Harrison, Joseph  
 +Hoe, Rev. Thos. D.P. G.M.
- 1796 +Hinton, John  
 Horsley, Lieut. John, Royal  
 Horse Guards, Blue
- 1802 Harrison, John, ditto
- 1813 Higginson, Nicholas
- 1814 Hester, William
- 1816 Hester, John
- 1817 +Hodgson, I.  
 Harrison, Thomas
- 1821 +Howe, Right Hon. the Earl  
 Harris, Samuel Smith
- 1823 +Haywood, —
- 1825 Healey, William
- 1827 Hayward, Peter Henry
- 1829 Hextall, Thomas
- 1830 Horst, Geo. Fred
- 1831 Hoskins, Bartholomew
- 1838 Humes, Joseph
- 1840 Hilbers, Thomas
- 1841 +Hamer, William
- 1842 Hawkins, Geo. (Tyler)
- 1843 Holland, John
- Hipwell, Eli
- 1847 Hall, William
- 1790 Ingle, William  
 Johnson, Stephen
- 1805 Iliffe, John  
 Judd, —
- 1830 Irwin, Wm. Crossley
- 1847 Johnson, R. W.  
 Jewson, John
- 1849 +Jackson, P. A.
- 1851 Jackson, Arthur
- 1796 Kirkland, James
- 1797 King, Nathaniel
- 1810 King, Thomas
- 1813 Kirkland, Thos. Smith
- 1820 Kirk, Charles
- 1822 Kirk, G. S.
- 1825 +Keightly, William
- 1838 Kelly, William



- 1845 Kilworth, Robert  
Kinder, T. W.
- 1846 Keller, Herr  
Kinder, Arthur
- 1850 +Kinder, Henry
- 1792 Luck, George
- 1793 Lucas, —
- 1794 Long, Samuel
- 1796 +Le Hunt, Captain
- 1818 +Lang, Peter Thomas
- 1824 Lafargue, Peter Augustus  
L'Hermitte, Henry
- 1830 Leach, Thomas
- 1842 Lee, Thomas Faulkner  
Lafargue, Russel Augustus  
Law, John
- 1843 +London, Richard
- 1790 +Mullian, John
- 1796 +Moore, Francis  
+Moore, Jonathan  
+Murray, Captain
- 1799 +Macdonnel, Jas. Arthur
- 1816 Musson, Christopher
- 1819 Moon, Joseph
- 1820 Moot, William
- 1821 Markland, W. H. R. N.  
Macaulay, Colin Campbell
- 1823 Morris, Sam. Cheeke
- 1824 Mavus, Charles
- 1826 Mortin, John
- 1831 +Matthews, —
- 1833 Moxon, Thomas
- 1837 +Maunsell, Wm. (Tyler)
- 1839 Minnitt, Wm. Hastings
- 1843 Mash, Stephen
- 1846 Marston, John
- 1847 Marston, Robert
- 1851 Morris, Charles
- 1822 Norbury, John G. Esq.
- 1823 Nedham, William
- 1835 Norman, Geo. Esq.
- 1797 Oliver, Samuel
- 1804 Owston, Welborn
- 1810 Osborne, Wm. (Tyler)
- 1818 Owston, Hiram Abin
- 1819 Oldacres, John
- 1825 Oliver, Joseph Boyer
- 1832 Owston, George
- 1790 \*Phelps, Thomas
- 1798 Pester, Richard
- 1795 Pindar, Robert (Tyler)
- 1804 Packe Cornet Robert, Royal  
Horse Guards, Blue
- 1802 Priest, —  
Pilkinton, Archibald
- 1810 Phillips, —  
Penn, Bates Phillips
- 1820 Price, Charles Henry Thad-  
deus  
Pochin, Geo. Esq.  
Parsons, William
- 1833 Partridge, Rev. William Ed-  
ward, M. A.
- 1841 Pratt, John
- 1842 Paget, Henry  
Parsons, Thomas
- 1845 Pettifor, W.
- 1847 Pennoek, James (Tyler)
- 1848 +Pochin, John Matthew
- 1849 Pratt, John
- 1814 Quilter, Edward
- 1790 \*Rayson, John

- 1790 Roughton, Zachem  
Rogers, Rev. Thos. M.A.
- 1796 Richardson, William  
+Ross, Richard
- 1807 Ross, Charles
- 1808 Riley, Philip
- 1809 +Robinson, Samuel
- 1811 Riley, William
- 1813 Rawson, Richard
- 1823 Raymond, Francis
- 1831 Roberts, Thomas, (Tyler)  
+Rancliff, Right Hon. Lord,  
P.G.M.
- 1842 Ross, Henry
- 1847 Rawson, Charles
- 1849 Richardson, Jos. Ferguson
- 1790 \*Smith, Joseph  
Schorer, Roeland Jacob
- 1794 Smith, Joseph, Jun.
- 1796 Smith, T. B.
- 1800 Shenstone, Robert  
Smart, Thos. Rayner
- 1808 Smith, J.
- 1812 Smith, Abraham
- 1814 +Samuel  
Sutton, Henry Callis
- 1815 Scott, William
- 1818 Simpkin, William  
Stallard, John Pinfold
- 1819 Smith, —
- 1823 Staveley, Edward  
Staveley, Christopher
- 1824 Sultzer, John
- 1825 Snelson, Mark
- 1826 +Shipley, Richard  
Spencer, Thomas
- 1830 Stevens, Augustus
- 1833 Stretton, Bartholomew
- 1848 Smart, C. F.  
Scott, John  
Smith, Robert Edwin
- 1849 Stephens, W. W.  
+Steele, M. P.  
+Spooner, Thos.
- 1790 Tather, Luke
- 1791 Toopotts, Richard  
Thompson, Robert
- 1801 Thoyts, Comet John, Royal  
Horse Guards, Blue  
Thornhill, Henry, Royal  
Horse Guards, Blue
- 1801 Townshend, — (Tyler)  
Tailby, John
- 1813 Thompson, William
- 1817 Tanner, Thomas
- 1818 +Thomas, Paul
- 1821 Tomlinson, William
- 1827 Toon, John
- 1833 +Turner, Thos. Frewin, Esq.
- 1847 Thorpe, Thomas
- 1851 Tempest, R. W.
- 1846 +Underwood, Joseph
- 1848 Underwood, Jos. J. Jun.
- 1790 \*Valentine, James
- 1791 Valentine, Robert  
Wightman, James  
+Webb, Edward  
+Wilkinson, Joshua
- 1796 Willis, Joseph
- 1801 Wallis, John
- 1814 +Weston, Edward
- 1818 Wale, James

1823 Wagstaff, James  
1829 +Warner, Richard  
1835 +Wheatly, Thomas  
1836 +Williams, —  
1842 Williamson, William  
1843 \*Wheeler, T. H.  
1845 Webb, J. Hemming  
1846 Windram, W. J.  
1847 Wyatt, Frederic James Louis

1848 Walklate, Thos.  
Wilmot, Philip Mann  
1849 Wheeler, A. W.  
1851 Warner, Downing  
Whitmore, Thomas  
Wilmore, John  
Weare, William  
+Walker, Thos. Larking  
1850 Young, Sidney William

Copyright Worcestershire Masonic  
Library and Museum Trust

## Presiding Officers of St. John's Lodge

No. 348.

*From its foundation in Nov. 1790.*

YEAR.	WORSHIPFUL MASTER	SENIOR WARDEN	JUNIOR WARDEN
Nov. 1790...	Charles Horton,	Joseph Smith,	Thomas Bull,
June, 1791...	Thomas Bull,	F. B. Davenport,	William Ingle,
Dec. ,, ...	F. B. Davenport,	William Ingle,	Thomas Freer,
June, 1792...	T. Freer, Attor- ney,	Capt. N. Cooper,	William Burley,
Dec. ,, ...	Capt. N. Cooper,	William Burley,	George Luck,
June, 1793...	F. B. Davenport,	David Harris,	Thomas Bull,
Dec. ,, ...	William Burley,	George Luck,	William Green,
June, 1794...	George Luck,	Edward Hodges,	David Harris,
June, 1795...	Edward Hodges,	William Cornish,	Joseph Glover,
Dec. 1796...	William Cornish,	Joseph Glover,	Francis Moore,
June, 1797...	Joseph Glover,	Francis Moore,	T. B. Smith,
Dec. ,, ...	Francis Moore,	T. B. Smith,	Samuel Yates,
June, 1798...	T. B. Smith,	George Luck,	W. Richardson,
June, 1799...	George Luck,	W. Richardson,	W. Gill,
June, 1800...	W. Richardson,	Edward Hodges,	W. Cornish
Dec. ,, ...	W. Richardson,	Wm. Cornish,	Thos. Brace,
June, 1801...	W. Richardson,	Thos. Brace,	James Caparn,



YEAR.	WORSHIPFUL MASTER.	SENIOR WARDEN	JUNIOR WARDEN
Dec. 1801...	William Burley,	George Luck,	James Caparn,
Dec. 1802...	George Luck,	Jas. Caparn,	Jos. Smith, sen
June, 1804...	Jos. Smith, sen.	William Burley,	W. Richardson
June, 1806...	Wm. Burley,	Samuel Long,	Welborn Owston,
Dec. 1807...	Samuel Long,	Welborn Owston,	—Abby
April, 1810...	Wm. Burley,	Welborn Owston,	—Abby
June, „ ...	Welborn Owston,	W. Richardson,	Henry Gird,
Dec. 1811...	Welborn Owston,	Geo. Luck,	Henry Gird,
„ 1813...	Geo. Luck,	Henry Gird	Thos. Cooke,
June, 1814...	T. R. Smart,	Jos. Smith,	Nicholas Higgin- son,
Dec. 1814...	Henry Gird,	Thos. Cooke,	Wm. Richardson,
June, 1815...	Henry Gird,	Thos. Cooke	Wm. Richardson,
Dec. 1815...	Thomas Cooke,	Richard Rawson,	Nicholas Higgin- son,
Dec. 1816...	R. Rawson,	N. Higginson,	Thos. V. Gregory
„ 1817...	N. Higginson,	Thos. V. Gregory,	Wm. Hester,
„ 1818...	T. V. Gregory,	Wm. Hester,	C. Musson,
„ 1819...	Wm. Hester,	C. Musson,	Joseph Crowder,
„ 1820...	C. Musson,	J. Crowder,	P. T. Lang,
„ 1821...	J. Crowder,	William Cooke,	J. P. Stallard,
„ 1822...	Right Hon. Earl Howe,	J. P. Stallard,	John Oldacres,
„ 1823...	Wm. Cooke,	John Oldacres,	Geo. Pochin, Esq.
„ 1824...	Geo. Pochin, Esq.	C. C. Macaulay,	Samuel Alston,
„ 1825...	J. P. Stallard,	Wm. Hester,	John Sultzer,
„ 1826...	C. Musson,	Wm. Cooke,	John Mortin,
„ 1827...	Sir F. G. Fowke, Bart.	Thos. Cooke,	C. Musson,
„ 1828...	Sir F. G. Fowke, Bart.	Jas. Elverson,	William Flint,
„ 1829...	Jas. Elverson,	Sam. C. Morris,	John Mortin,
„ 1830...	Sam. C. Morris,	William Flint,	Thos. Hextall,
„ 1831...	P. T. Lang,	John Mortin,	Chas. Mavius,



YEAR.	WORSHIPFUL MASTER.	SENIOR WARDEN	JUNIOR WARDEN
Dec. 1832...	John Mortin,	Chas. Mavius,	G. F. Hurst,
„ 1833...	Thos. Hextall	W. C. Irwin,	Geo. Owston,
„ 1834...	Rt. Hon. Lord Rancliff,	Chas. Mavius,	Thos. Moxon,
„ 1835...	Wm. Flint,	W. C. Irwin,	Henry Gill,
„ 1836...	Chas. Mavius,	Thos. Moxon,	
„ 1838...	Thos. Moxon,	Thos. Leach,	Edward Hodges,
„ 1839...	Thos. Leach,	W. C. Irwin,	W. Kelly,
„ 1840...	W. C. Irwin,	Wm. Kelly,	Joseph Hames,
„ 1841...	William Kelly,	Joseph Hames,	John Pratt,
„ 1842...	Joseph Hames,	John Pratt,	Robert Crawford,
„ 1843...	John Pratt,	Robert Crawford,	W. Williamson,
„ 1844...	Robert Crawford,	W. Williamson,	T. H. Wheeler,
„ 1845...	T. H. Wheeler,	Jeremiah Biggs,	T. C. Browne,
„ 1846...	T. H. Wheeler,	T. C. Browne,	W. Pettifor,
„ 1847...	W. Pettifor,	W. Kinder,	W. J. Windram,
„ 1848...	W. J. Windram,	James Gibson,	John Bate,
„ 1849...	James Gibson,	John Bate,	John Buck,
„ 1850...	Jos. Underwood,	John Buck,	Thos. Angrave,

Copyright Worcester Shire Museum Trust

## Officers of the Provincial Grand Lodge.

1851.

*Being Members of St. John's and John of Gaunt Lodges.*

- 
- Bro. WILLIAM PETTIFOR, S. G. W.  
 „ THOMAS COOPER, J. G. W.  
 „ G. C. FELWICKE, Chaplain.  
 „ ROBERT CRAWFORD, Treasurer.  
 „ WILLIAM COOKE, Secretary.  
 „ WILLIAM JAMES WINDRAM, S. G. D.  
 „ — KINTON, J. G. D.  
 „ JAMES GIBSON, Gr. Registrar.  
 „ EDWIN CLEPHAN, Sup. Works.  
 „ WILLIAM HARDY, D. Ceremonies.  
 „ JOSEPH UNDERWOOD, Assistant ditto.  
 „ FREDERICK GOODYER, Sword Bearer.  
 „ CHARLES MAVIUS, Organist.  
 „ JOHN BUCK, Pursuivant.

Copyright Worcestershire Masonic  
Library and Museum Trust

LEICESTER:

PRINTED BY T. CHAPMAN BROWNE, BIBLE AND CROWN,  
MARKET PLACE.